KING
COUNTY

LIBRARY
SYSTEM

PRESENT
KCLS BOARD

Judge LeRoy McCullough
Lucy Krakowiak
Jessica Bonebright

KCLS Staff
Bill Ptacek

Linda Glenicki
Charlene Richards
Nancy Smith
Bruce Adams
Julie Wallace
Bruce Schauer
Jed Moffitt

Kay Johnson

Greg Smith
Jennifer Wiseman

GUESTS

H. David Kaplan
Lisa Johnson
Margaret Nelson
Phyllis Forister
Jim Bowen

Gary Robinson
Connie Reed

Lori Robinson
Randy Barthelman
Susan Veltfort
Christine Livingston
Paul Jensen

Zina Stockinger
Dave Valencia
Rob Bowman
Betty Cubert
Yoshiko Saheki
Radhika Kumar
Linda Johnson

King County Library System
Board of Trustees

Service Center
Spm ¢ 29 August 2006

MOTIONS APPROVED

1. Motion to approve the Board Agenda as amended

2. Minutes from July 25, 2006 were deemed approved

3.  Motion to approve Payroll expenditures

4. Motion to approve General Fund #0010 expenditures

5.  Motion to approve Construction Bond Fund 88 #3020 expenditures

6.  Motion to approve Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 expenditures

7.  Motion to approve Gift Fund #6010 expenditures

8.  Motion to approve Resolution 2006-05 - Disposition of Surplus Real Property (Sammamish)

9.  Motion to approve project budget revisions for the five Design/Build libraries

10. Motion to approve the 2007 Budget Priorities

11. Motion to approve the addition of the Coalition for Charitable Choice (CCC) as a KCLS
Workplace Giving Campaign beneficiary

12. Motion to approve use of Service Center meeting room by public training vendor

CALL TO ORDER
LeRoy McCullough called the meeting to order at 5:05pm.
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

The following action items were added to the agenda: Service Center Meeting Room Use by
Public Training Vendor. The discussion of the Independent Evaluation of Clustering was also
moved to occur prior to the presentation of the Building Design - Burien Library. Jessica
Bonebright moved approval of the agenda as amended. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the
motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

There having been no changes to the draft July 25, 2006 minutes, they were deemed
approved.

FINANCE REPORT

Linda Glenicki reviewed current finances noting July expenditures were $6.0 million versus a monthly budget
average of $6.8 million. Year-to-date expenditures are $43.7 million (53.3% of budget versus 58.3% of the year
completed). This compares to July year-to-date expenditures in 2005 of $41.7 million (52.5% of the budget). The
following General Fund items were called out:

+ Benefits: Expenditures have been averaging $730,000 per month, but have now increased to $760,000
per month due to a scheduled rate increase in the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
contributions. The employer rate increased in July from 2.44% to 3.69%. Further increases are scheduled
through 2008 leading up to a rate of 7.5%.

+ Supplies: Expenditures included $70,000 related to the purchase of backpacks, the prize for Summer
Reading Program finishers.

+ Professional Services: Expenditures are showing a decrease versus prior year (down 25.2%) due to
several large projects that took place last year including the Patron Experience Transformation Project.

+ Reserves: An expenditure of $37,000 was for (1 million) plastic bags for patrons to carry books in.

July revenues were $554,000 bringing year-to-date revenue to $42.1 million (53.0% of budget). KCLS took in
$80,000 in contracts revenue reflecting the semi-annual payment from the Youth Service Center. Fines payments

KCLS Board Meeting

Page 1 29 August 2006



are essentially flat versus last year, although lost material payments are starting to show a slight increase at
3.3%. Credit card payments in July were 24.4% of total payments, which is a slight increase over recent trends.

July expenditures from the 307 Capital Project Fund 2005 were $212,000 bringing year-to-date spending to $3.9
million (10% of the 2006 budget). The largest expenditure was $79,000 at Burien for architectural and design
work. There were no significant expenditures in the 302 Fund in July.

PAYMENT OF BILLS

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Payroll Expenditures in the amount of $2,125,164.35; Checks July
1-15" Chk #: 127169-128213; 132487-132687 and July 16-31% Chk #: 128214-129261; 132688-132877.
Jessica Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Jessica Bonebright moved approval of General Fund #0010 Expenditures July 2006 in the amount of
$6,322,813.79; (Travel Advances) Chk #794-796, (7/7) Chk #93329-93475; 93479-93484, (7/10) Chk
#93485-93565, (7/12) Chk #93566-93624, (7/13) Chk #93634-93640, (7/14) Chk #93641-93718, (7/17) Chk
#93723-93861, (7/19) Chk #93874-93884; 93885-93888, (7/20) Chk #93889-93962; 93963-94048, (7/21)
Chk #94050, (7/27) Chk #94057-94169; 94174-94240; 94241-94251, (7/31) Chk #94252-94253, (8/1) Chk
#94254-94344, (8/3) Chk #94348-94358; 94359-94362; 94363; 94364, (Voids) Chk #93883; 93966; 94361.
Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 Expenditures July 2006 in the
amount of $1,283.13; (7/12) Chk #93625-93626, (7/17) Chk #93862, (7/25) Chk #94051-94052. Jessica
Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

Jessica Bonebright moved approval of Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 Expenditures for July 2006 in the
amount of $147,791.82; (7/12) Chk #93627-93633, (7/17) Chk #93863-93873, (7/20) Chk #94049, (7/25)
Chk #94053-94056, (8/1) Chk #94345-94347. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed
unanimously.

Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Gift Fund #6010 Expenditures for July 2006 in the amount of $1,761.70;
(7/7) Chk #93476-93478, (7/14), Chk #93719-93722, (9/27) Chk #94170-94173, (8/3) Chk #94365. Jessica
Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY (SAMMAMISH) - RESOLUTION 2006-05

Kay Johnson said Resolution 2006-05 declares “certain real property” in Sammamish “surplus to the current and
anticipated needs of the District” in light of the fact that KCLS will build a new/expanded Sammamish Library on
a different site. While KCLS has not secured a site for the new library, KCLS’ Purchasing Policy stipulates that
the Board must determine by resolution that the property is no longer required for library district purposes
before three (3) market value appraisals of the property can be obtained. KCLS will then conduct a public
hearing on the advisability of proposed sale before the property can be sold. If the property is sold, the price
must exceed 90% of the average of the three appraisals. LeRoy McCullough clarified that the Board declaring the
property surplus is only the first step in the process of selling it. Kay Johnson affirmed. Lucy Krakowiak moved
approval of Resolution 2006-05. Jessica Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

PROJECT BUDGET REVISIONS - DESIGN/BUILD LIBRARIES

Linda Glenicki reviewed the Capital Plan fund availability, noting that voters approved $172 million in September
2004 versus the most recent Board-approved budget, which shows $158,213,000 in planned expenditures. As of
July 31, this leaves $13,787,000 in unallocated bond funds. She also pointed out that an additional $2,857,605 is
available from the bond sale because the bonds were sold at a premium, as well as $2,321,865 in cumulative
interest earned (no arbitrage reduction required because interest earned is below bond yield). This totals to
$18,966,470 in authorized funds remaining. Linda Glenicki explained that the $18,966,470 in authorized funds
remaining was distributed amongst the projects at a rate of 2.8% per year for the cost of inflation. She pointed
out that the Burien Library project was not adjusted for inflation because that budget is set. Doing so brings the
total estimated project costs to $177,179,467. She explained that the total cost variance for the subset of
capital projects with current cost estimates produces an overage of $3,109,428. Based on property appraisals;
however, she said KCLS anticipates receipt of about $10,125,000 in surplus property sales. The net result is an
underage of $7,015,572. Linda Glenicki also pointed out that KCLS will continue to earn interest on the bond
proceeds, which will increase this underage.

KCLS Board Meeting Page 2 29 August 2006



Based on current cost estimates, Linda Glenicki reviewed the cost variances for the Design/Build libraries:

Original Budget Budget with .

(Cagital Bud(jqet) Inflatior? Allowance Actual Cost Difference
Snoqualmie 2,900,000 2,958,110 3,965,000 1,006,890
Muckleshoot 3,240,000 3,424,012 4,050,000 625,988
Carnation 2,700,000 2,853,343 2,985,000 131,657
Fall City 2,700,000 2,853,343 2,771,500 (-81,843)
SUBTOTAL 1,682,692

(335?55 d) Actual Cost Difference
| Black Diamond 2,789,800 N/A 3,634,762 844,962

SUBTOTAL 844,962

With final figures from BNBuilders for the five libraries in the Design/Build package, Linda Glenicki explained
that the four projects to be funded in the Capital Plan exceed the budgeted amount, including an inflation
allowance, by $1,682,692, which can be covered with the $10,125,000 that KCLS expects to realize from the sale
of surplus properties. The Black Diamond Library project, which is to be funded from the 302 Fund, is also short
of the available revenue in that account, which can be covered by the $827,372, already received for the sale of
surplus property in Kirkland (Juanita), with the remainder coming from investment income. She explained that
the Board would need to authorize the addition of $2,527,654 for these five projects.

Phyllis Forrister asked if the 302 Fund was unspent funds from the 1988 bond measure. Linda Glenicki explained
that those funds were spent some time ago. She noted that operating funds were set aside in the 302 Fund for
the Black Diamond Library project. Jim Bowen pointed out that the revised project budgets reflect a 14%
increase for the first four libraries and a 22% increase for the Black Diamond Library budget. He asked if KCLS
anticipates that future projects will follow the same trend. Bill Ptacek said there are unusual costs associated
with the Black Diamond Library project for property and building mitigations. He noted that the Finance
Committee has discussed ways to manage the Capital Plan budget in light of rising construction costs and
inflation. Kay Johnson also noted that in Snoqualmie, KCLS had an opportunity to purchase an extraordinary
piece of property which was and will continue to be an excellent investment for KCLS. Lucy Krakowiak moved
approval of project budget revisions for the five Design/Build libraries for the amount of $2,527,654.
Jessica Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

2007 BUDGET PRIORITIES

Linda Glenicki said the budget development process was different this year. She explained that cluster
managers, functional liaisons and other committees were asked to look at the current year’s budget priorities
and to provide input where to keep them, drop them, reprioritize them or add additional priorities. While
feedback was not solicited from every staff member, the groups were representative of employees at many
levels (not limited to management). This information was compiled and used to develop the following list of
proposed budget priorities (in ranked order):

1. Implement initiatives outlined in Strategic Blueprint developed from the Patron Experience
Transformation Project (Strategic Blueprint)

2. Improve and promote collections in all formats (Collections)

3. Implement staff development and support programs that facilitate gold standard customer service (Staff
Development)

4. Explore and develop technology and staffing solutions to address increased workload and customer
service needs (Technology + Staff)

5. Expand outreach for procurement, employment and all library activities to encourage participation by

the diverse populations served by KCLS (Outreach to Diverse Populations)

Work with schools and support student achievement (Schools + Students)

7. Support the development of Early Literacy in children, newborn to age five, with emphasis on outreach
services (Early Literacy)

8. Support issues and interests of local communities through programming (Programming)

9. Increase awareness and use of KCLS programs and services through a strategic communications program
(Awareness)

10. Retain adequate fund balance to preclude levy lid lift until 2010 (Maintain Fund Balance)

(o]

KCLS Board Meeting Page 3 29 August 2006



11. Keep facilities in good repair (Facilities Maintenance)

Linda Glenicki pointed out that the 2007 Budget Priorities differ from the 2006 Budget Priorities in that they call
out the need to implement the Strategic Blueprint, rather than just the recommendations developed from the
Patron Experience Transformation Project. She also noted that the collection-focused priority includes an
emphasis on promotion of all formats. She explained that priorities three and four, six and seven, and ten and
eleven are in reverse order based on staff input, and that the staffing priority is focused more on development
rather than recruitment. On behalf of the Planning Committee, Jessica Bonebright moved approval of the
2007 Budget Priorities. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

WORKPLACE GIVING CAMPAIGN - ADDITIONAL BENEFICIARY

Julie Wallace explained that for the past five years, KCLS” annual Workplace Giving Campaign has offered KCLS
employees two choices to direct their charitable contributions through: the United Way of King County (UWKC)
and the KCLS Foundation. She noted however, that the Workplace Giving Campaign has hit a plateau despite
vigorous attempts and approaches to engage and involve a greater number of staff and motivate new givers. A
reason repeatedly cited for not participating in the campaign is the limited choice between UWKC and the KCLS
Foundation, or the preference to not support either of those two organizations. In order to break through the
plateau, the Workplace Giving Staff Campaign Committee unanimously recommends that the Coalition for
Charitable Choice (CCC) be added as a third donation option. Support for this addition was expressed by the
Administrative Planning Team and Cluster Managers at their August 14 meeting.

Julie Wallace referred Planning Committee members to background information about the CCC, an alliance of
nine federations each of which is a partnership of five or more non-profit organizations united for fundraising
around a common area of need. With long-standing commitment and involvement with the UWKC (Loaned
Executive, annual participation in Day of Caring and volunteer involvement with UWKC Leadership Board,
Community Councils, etc.) and the KCLS Foundation, Julie Wallace said these two existing giving choices would
continue to be emphasized as the way to give locally. CCC would be positioned as the way to support local needs
not covered by UWKC or KCLS Foundation, as well as global/international needs. Statistics would be closely
tracked for impact on the overall campaign, specifically the impact on donations to UWKC and KCLS Foundation.
Board approval is needed to authorize the solicitation of KCLS staff for donations to the Coalition for Charitable
Choice (CCC) as part of KCLS” annual Workplace Giving Campaign. Jessica Bonebright moved approval of the
addition of the Coalition for Charitable Choice (CCC) as a KCLS Workplace Giving Campaign beneficiary.
Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

SERVICE CENTER MEETING ROOM USE BY PUBLIC TRAINING VENDOR

Bill Ptacek explained that KCLS began “Prepare: Personal Safety Training” in 2004. To date, 13 staff trainers
have presented 318 contact hours of training to reach 416 staff members (2,496 student hours). Seattle Public
Library, Sno-Isle Public Library and Timberland Public Library also use CPI personal safety training. Last year,
KCLS sent staff to Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI) Certification Training at Seattle Public Library and before
that, Sno-Isle hosted the training. He said it is KCLS” turn to host local training for CPI. By offering the use of our
meeting room, KCLS has an opportunity to give back to the library community and receive additional training at
no cost. Bill Ptacek explained, however, that KCLS needs Board approval to allow CPI, to use the Service Center
meeting room from October 9 to October 13 because while KCLS staff may attend the safety skills training free
of charge, other library system employees attending a training session pay a registration fee directly to CPI. The
vendor has been informed that our meeting room is a public facility and the event will be open to anyone should
they choose to walk in the room. LeRoy McCullough pointed out that KCLS will benefit because existing Certified
Instructors may attend the training programs at no charge, as well as by having our staff instructors receive the
Enhanced Instructor Certification Program and Violence Response Procedures certification. These full day
trainings normally cost $450 per person; providing KCLS a cost savings of $5,400. Lucy Krakowiak move to
approve use of the Service Center meeting room by Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI), the trainer for KCLS
Prepare personal safety trainers. Jessica Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC FORUM

LeRoy McCullough reiterated that the purpose of the Public Forum was to allow members of the public to share
their comments and concerns with members of the Board and Administration about library-related issues. He
noted that staff will be asked to respond to main topics and the Board will take the comments and responses
under advisement. He said the forum will be conducted to maximize public input and participation and asked
that participants be courteous of others to affect a fair airing of the concerns and staff responses.

KCLS Board Meeting Page 4 29 August 2006



CLASP (Corps of Librarians, Associates and Supervisory Personnel)

On behalf of CLASP (Corps of Librarians, Associates and Supervisory Personnel), Randy Barthelman, a Public
Services Librarian for the past 16 and currently Assistant Managing Librarian in the Black Diamond, Covington and
Maple Valley library cluster, informed the Board and the Director that their group is in the process of organizing
a collective bargaining unit with the assistance of Council 2 of the Washington State Council of County and City
Employees (AFSCME, AFL-CIO). He read the group’s mission statement and goals aloud and said the statement
was publicly supported by the following members of the organizing effort: Rob Bowman, Marilee Cogswell,
Hester Kremer, Paul Jensen, Chris Livingston, Barb Pitney, Sally Porter, Zina Stockinger and Dave Valencia.

Local 1857

Susan Veltfort, President of Local 1857, said the Executive Board of Local 1857 and KCLS Management have been
holding labor management meetings since June. She said that they’ve been working to resolve the problems
created by the organization of “clusters” and said Local 1857 is pleased to report that an agreement was
recently reached that should resolve many of the work schedule and work location issues for members of their
bargaining unit. She noted that implementation of the changes will take place over several months so that it can
be done in a planned and thoughtful manner with management, staff and representatives from Local 1857
working together. She said everyone will welcome a process that is not hasty and accomplishes what is needed.
She said it is their understanding that the majority of bargaining members will be returning to their community
library to work. They will re-form teams that best meet the needs of the communities they serve and continue
to build strong community connections. She recognized there are still issues that need to be addressed and said
that Local 1857 and KCLS Administration will continue to work collaboratively through monthly meetings. One
item Local 1857 would like to address is the shortage of staff, particularly as KCLS expands locations and hours.
In closing, Susan Veltfort extended her support to the organizing efforts of the library workers in the supervisory
and assistant mangers classifications. She said their reasons for organizing are the same as staff in Local 1857
and their efforts reflect the need and right of library workers in every classification to have a voice in the work
place, to be treated fairly and with respect and to be able to bargain their working conditions and hours of work.

1988 Bond Measure

Phyllis Forester asked why the 1988 bond funds designated for the Muckleshoot and Black Diamond libraries were
not set aside. She emphasized that KCLS is now dealing with inflated costs because the organization wasn’t
accountable to these two projects, which were part of the 1988 bond measure. Bill Ptacek explained that when
the 1988 bond measure went before voters, Black Diamond was not part of KCLS, but rather was a City
contracting for services. As a result, no funds were allocated from the 1988 bond measure for Black Diamond.
The Board decision to begin building projects in Black Diamond occurred only after the city annexed in February
1990. At that time, the Board acknowledged the need for a larger library and committed to doing so with
operating funds. Like Black Diamond, residents of the Muckleshoot area didn’t vote on the 1988 bond measure.
KCLS expended funds for the construction of the current library in the early 1970s. That library has been part of
KCLS since that time. A new 5,000-square-foot library in a visible, accessible location was included in the 2004
Capital Plan. The new library will be a key element in serving residents in southeast King County who have
previously had to rely on a reciprocal agreement with the Enumclaw Public Library. This library and the new
Black Diamond Library will anchor library service to this area. In addition, there is no expense for the site the
new Muckleshoot Library will be built on at the intersection of SE 400" and State Route 164.

Linda Glenicki also clarified that taxpayers are still paying off the 1988 bonds although the bond proceeds were
expended some time ago, and that this is not at all unusual. She explained that municipal bonds typically have

payment schedules of 20 or more years and that at the same time, federal laws require that the funds borrowed
are spent in a reasonably short period of time after the borrowing. She explained that it’s similar to a mortgage
where you borrow a large sum of money to buy a house and then pay it back over a much longer period of time.

Public Notification & Access to Board Documents

Connie Reed read a letter on behalf of Michele Hillyer, who was unable to attend the meeting. Michele Hillyer
thanked the Board for holding public forums and for meeting in the larger meeting room. She said however, that
the Board’s constituents couldn’t attend the meeting because 5pm on a weekday is the busiest time of day for
families with children and many people cannot leave their jobs to attend. She mentioned that the drive to
Issaquah is also difficult at that time of day. While she acknowledged that the Board occasionally meets in other
parts of the county, she said those visits are concentrated in geographic areas, leaving several years between
meetings in any one area. Referencing recent complaints about the public being unaware of board meetings
because of lack of publicity, Michele Hillyer also pointed out that she was unable to access the attachments to
the agenda from a KCLS patron computer. She noted that she had to go to a Sno-Isle Library to use a computer to
get the attachments. She suggested that for the Board to really hear from its constituents, the forums need to

KCLS Board Meeting Page 5 29 August 2006



be held at a time and place where more of the public can attend. She added that large notices need to be
prominent in the libraries and attachments need to be available on KCLS patron computers.

Jennifer Wiseman announced that each KCLS library received an 11” x 17 laminated poster to be used for
posting monthly announcements of upcoming Board of Trustees meetings. She noted that these posters were
distributed two weeks prior to the August Public Forum and should be posted in a visible location of each library.
Jed Moffitt also agreed to look into the issues opening agenda attachments on patron computers and promised
that patrons would be able to access them in the future. Finally, LeRoy McCullough noted that, as it relates to
Public Forums, the Service Center has one of the largest rooms in the System which works to relieve congestion
of smaller rooms. He emphasized the Board’s commitment to continue meeting at community libraries.

Independent Evaluation of Clustering

H. David Kaplan quoted Richard Eadie from the June 27 minutes: “In order to maintain KCLS’ credibility and in
the spirit of good operational decisions, he affirmed that KCLS should identify appropriate professional service
groups to conduct an independent evaluation of clustering. In addition, he proposed that KCLS stop think of
clustering as the only alternative for dealing with the future challenges.” In light of this move towards
credibility and transparency, H. David Kaplan asked the Board, to amend the agenda to place the discussion of
the Independent Evaluation of Cluster before the public forum so those speaking during the forum can present
more reasoned and relevant remarks after hearing staff’s perception on the subject. LeRoy McCullough noted
that the agenda had been approved and asked H. David Kaplan to proceed with his remarks. H. David Kaplan
explained that he reviewed the materials online regarding this subject and was surprised that the company that
charges the most will do the job in the shortest time and that the company that will take the longest to do the
job will work three times longer and charge between $6,000 to 25,000 less. He noted that the locality of the
firms was a positive, so travel costs don’t consume the budget. He said Deloitte’s proposal reads as if they’ve
already completed their study and endorse clustering, while MTG Consultants treats clustering as a relatively
new concept, despite the fact it’s been going on for more than three years. He said MTG Consultants also talk
about the First Quarter Evaluation presented in June, which H. David Kaplan said was uninformed and
inappropriate. Further, he said MTG Consultants appear to have endorsed the concept of clustering and is only
looking for ways to improve it. Referring back to Richard Eadie’s statement, H. David Kaplan said neither
Deloitte nor MTG Consultants took the time or was objective enough to consider that clustering may not be the
only alternative for dealing with the future challenges. Because they want to evaluate organizational
effectiveness and management, while doing a strategic assessment of the concept, he said the ad hoc committee
of patrons would select Waldron and Company. He added that because the evaluation is actually an evaluation of
one aspect of KCLS Administration, he emphasized that it is critical that the independent evaluation be
presented, in detail, to the Board (and not to the Director) by the evaluating firm at an open public meeting.

Lisa Johnson read a letter on behalf of Radhika Kumar, who was unable to attend the meeting. Radhika Kumar
countered a statement made by Nancy Smith’s statement on June 27 that “there is anecdotal evidence that
indicates that staff members are feeling less effective; feelings of not understanding the new structure or the
reasons behind it are prevalent; staff working in various buildings express decreased lack of competence helping
the public in their new surroundings.” She suggested that there is more than anecdotal evidence that the
shuffling of staff and rotation did not work from its inception. She asked if the Board has sought out memos from
management to the staff of the libraries that were the first victims of splintering. She quoted a memo from April
30, 2003 meant to reassure staff: “KCLS isn’t doing this blind to possible problems, but rather, hopeful that a
stronger management team can make each combination more effective for the public...There is not a master list
of combinations to be achieved. We’re trying these combinations to see if they can work effectively for
improved service.” Radhika Kumar said it did not improve service and KCLS deliberately turned a blind eye to
the problems caused by shuffling staff. She quoted a November 2004 memo that alluded to those problems and
said there are other memos showing that the cluster reality was a nightmare and that moving on only increased
the pain. She said that one of the early clusters was so disastrous that KCLS was compelled to hire an
independent mediator in July 2004 who acknowledged that clustering was not well-received or internalized (as
an experiment or permanent model) and resistance has continued and in some cases escalated. Radhika Kumar
also said the mediator concluded that, given the decision has been made to go forward with the cluster model,
“If people truly cannot accept that decision and work within the system to implement it in good faith, then it
only makes sense to seek other employment. In the end, this is a workplace in a system led by a Director and
Board who have the right to make such decisions.” As taxpayers adversely affected by the Administration’s right
to make such arbitrary decisions, Radhika Kumar asked the Board to restore KCLS’ credibility and hire a firm that
will be truly independent and objective in evaluating clustering.

Margaret Nelson thanked the Board for their efforts to make the July meeting more inclusive of the public,
allowing them to ask questions after public comment time. She said she too was unable to open the agenda

KCLS Board Meeting Page 6 29 August 2006



attachments on the patron computers, but that librarians could as could home computers. She asked that this be
changed; saying patrons who tried at patron computers could not access agenda attachments such as this
month’s items “M” and “N.” She noted that if patrons could have read these attachments, they would have
found that the Planning and Finance committees have discussed the Independent Evaluation of Clustering. After
finding out that they weren’t, Margaret Nelson asked the Board to open future committee meetings to the
public. She suggested the Board use the Federal Way City Council’s model in which regular meetings of each of
its four committees are open to the public with a public comment time scheduled at each. She pointed out that
three Councilmembers are on each committee, so like KCLS, there is no quorum. She added that public comment
time helps deal with issue while still in committee, saving time and shortening regular meetings. Lucy Krakowiak
referred back to Jed Moffitt’s response regarding agenda attachments and noted that the Board would discuss
her request about committee meetings at the Board Planning Retreat on Friday, October 13.

Jim Bowen reminded the Board that he presented information on June 27 relating to the ad hoc committee’s
concern that KCLS is overbuilding libraries in relation to its ability to properly staff them based on revenue.
While the minutes of that meeting detail the information, he reiterated his statement that KCLS cannot afford
this. His said the figures show that based on recent years’ revenue and revenue projections, there will not be
enough money to pay for the increased staff for the new and expanded libraries scheduled to be built. He added
that it is believed that clustering won’t come close to saving the number of people needed to staff the newly
constructed spaces; a fact he said the independent evaluation of clustering will likely show. He suggested that as
the Board discusses budgeting and strategic planning at their retreat, they focus on revenue, staffing and
construction - the most important issue facing the Board.

On behalf of the ad hoc Committee of patrons, Lori Robinson said KCLS patrons are still awaiting a copy of
Director Ptacek’s performance evaluation completed in May 2006. She said that County Executive Ron Sim’s
office had been told that Judge McCullough would be completing the evaluation based on the criteria listed in
the Public Library Trustee Reference Manual (www.secstate.wa.gov/library/libraries/libdev/publications.aspx).
She asked the Board when they might see a copy. LeRoy McCullough said that there was a misunderstanding. He
said his commitment was to work with the Human Resources Manager to develop an evaluation tool for 2007. He
noted that the Planning Committee will be responsible for ensuring this process is formalized and implemented.
LeRoy McCullough said he would discuss how to proceed with the documentation of the Director’s 2006
performance evaluation with Richard Eadie, the most senior Board member, upon his return. He said a report
would be given at the next meeting.

INDEPENDENT EVALUATION OF CLUSTERING

Linda Glenicki said 10 firms were considered to provide an independent evaluation of clustering. She explained
that the list consisted of firms that KCLS staff was familiar with, firms suggested by members of the public and
firms referred to KCLS by other parties. She said the list was narrowed to four firms to be interviewed, noting
that some of the firms were not interviewed because their primary area of expertise didn’t correspond to this
type of work or because they weren’t interested in pursuing the opportunity. Linda Glenicki said that she, Bill
Ptacek and Nancy Smith conducted one-hour interviews with Clark Nuber, Deloitte Consulting, MTG Management
Consultants and Waldron & Company. Following each interview, the firms were asked to submit a two-page
proposal explaining the expertise of their firm, their proposed approach to the project and their fee structure.
Clark Nuber did not submit a written proposal because they decided that the project was not a good match for
their expertise. Linda Glenicki expressed confidence that any of the remaining three firms could competently
complete the project. She confirmed that MTG Management Consultants’ fees came in the lowest, followed by
Waldron & Company and Deloitte Consulting. While KCLS did not specifically ask for this information, Linda
Glenicki pointed out that MTG Management Consultants provided a list of the clients they’ve worked with, which
appears heavily slanted toward departments of transportation in a number of states. She expressed concern that
a department of transportation wouldn’t have the public interaction aspect KCLS does. Linda Glenicki explained
that this topic was included on the Board meeting agenda with the intent of soliciting feedback from the Board
and members of the public about the firms before staff makes a decision later this week.

Phyllis asked who the firm will report to and if the public would be apprised of the firm chosen. LeRoy
McCullough said an announcement can be posted on the Board webpage. Lori Robinson pointed out that the
statement made by H. David Kaplan in favor of Waldron & Company reflected the recommendation of the entire
ad hoc committee of patrons. H. David Kaplan asked if feedback had been solicited or received from Richard
Eadie or Charlotte Spitzer. Linda Glenicki said no. Bill Ptacek noted that Richard Eadie was aware of the timing
of this decision as it related to his absence at the Board meeting. H. David Kaplan also asked where the funds
would come from to pay a firm. While no discussion has occurred yet, Linda Glenicki said KCLS has a general
reserve in the budget, as well as a professional services reserve. Finally, H. David Kaplan said he was surprised

KCLS Board Meeting Page 7 29 August 2006






